
MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT  
100-B Drake’s Landing Road, Suite 250, Greenbrae, CA 94904  Telephone: 415-464-2090  Fax: 415-464-2094 

www.marinhealthcare.org      info@marinhealthcare.org 

 
TUESDAY, APRIL 11, 2023 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

5:30 PM: REGULAR OPEN MEETING 

The agenda for the meeting will be posted and distributed at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require accommodations to participate in a District meeting 

please contact the District office at 415-464-2090 (voice) or 415-464-2094 (fax) at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
Meetings open to the public are recorded and the recordings are posted on the District web site. 

 
Board of Directors: 
Chair: Brian Su, MD (Division 3) 
Vice Chair: Edward Alfrey, MD (Div. 5) 
Secretary: Ann Sparkman, RN/BSN, JD (Div. 2) 
Directors: Jennifer Rienks, PhD (Div. 4) 
 Samantha Ramirez, BSW (Div. 1) 
Staff: 
David Klein, MD, MBA, CEO 
Eric Brettner, CFO 
Colin Leary, General Counsel 
Louis Weiner, Executive Assistant 

Location for Board: 
MarinHealth Medical Center, Inverness Room 
250 Bon Air Road, Greenbrae CA 
 
Public via Zoom video: 
https://mymarinhealth.zoom.us/join 
Meeting ID: 993 1690 8660 
Passcode: 759559 
Or via Zoom telephone: 1-669-900-9128 
 
 

 AGENDA 
 Presenter Tab # 

5:30 PM: REGULAR OPEN MEETING 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call Su 
 
2. General Public Comments Su 

 Any member of the audience may make statements regarding any items NOT on the agenda. 
 Statements are limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes. 
 Please state and spell your name if you wish it to be recorded in the minutes. 

 
3. Approve Agenda (action) Su 
 
4. Move to reconfirm findings under Assembly Bill 2449 and extend Su #1 
 Resolution MHD 2022-06 to continue virtual meetings of the 
 Marin Healthcare District (action) 
 
5. Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 14, 2023 (action) Su #2 
 
6. Disclosure of Action Taken at Board Special Closed Session, April 11, 2023 Klein 
 
7. Management of General Public Comments  Su 
 
8. Resolution No. MHD 2023-01: Approval, as General Member of  Klein/ #3 
 MarinHealth Medical Center (“Hospital”), of Hospital’s issuance of  Brettner 
 2023 Revenue Bonds pursuant to Section 10.1(d) of the Hospital 
 Bylaws (action) 
 

https://mymarinhealth.zoom.us/join


MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT  
100-B Drake’s Landing Road, Suite 250, Greenbrae, CA 94904  Telephone: 415-464-2090  Fax: 415-464-2094 

www.marinhealthcare.org      info@marinhealthcare.org 

 
TUESDAY, APRIL 11, 2023 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

5:30 PM: REGULAR OPEN MEETING 

The agenda for the meeting will be posted and distributed at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require accommodations to participate in a District meeting 

please contact the District office at 415-464-2090 (voice) or 415-464-2094 (fax) at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
Meetings open to the public are recorded and the recordings are posted on the District web site. 

 
9. Achieving Nutrition Security in Marin County  Naja-Riese #4 
 Andy Naja-Riese, MSHP, CEO of Agricultural Institute of Marin 
 
 
10. Update: Discharge Planning Process  Klein #5 
 Jessica Gonzalez-Romero, MSN, RN, Emergency/Trauma Clinical Manager 
 Danielle Shockey, MSN, RN, Clinical Education Specialist for MedSurg Unit 
 
11. Committee Reports 

a. Finance & Audit Committee (did not meet, next meets April 25) Alfrey 
b. Lease & Building Committee (met March 22) Rienks 
 

12. Reports 
a. District CEO’s Report Klein 
b. Hospital CEO’s Report Klein 
c. Chair’s and Board Members’ Reports All 

 
13. Agenda Suggestions for Future Meetings All 
 
14. Adjournment of Regular Meeting Chair 

 
Next Regular Meeting: Tuesday, May 9, 2023 @ 5:30 p.m. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Tab 1 
  



 

 

 

 

MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. MHD 2022-06 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS 

PURSUANT TO AB 2449 

 

WHEREAS, all Marin Healthcare District (“District”) meetings are open and 

public, as required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963); and  

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom declared a State of Emergency 

to make additional resources available, formalize emergency actions already underway 

across multiple state agencies and departments, and help the State prepare for a broader 

spread of the novel coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”); and  

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, 

Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 suspending certain provisions of the 

Ralph M. Brown Act in order to allow local legislative bodies to conduct meetings 

telephonically or by other means; and 

WHEREAS, as a result of Executive Order N-29-20, District staff set up virtual 

meetings for all meetings of the District Board of Directors and its committees 

(collectively, “District Meetings”); and  

WHEREAS, certain teleconferencing allowances were made under subsequently-

enacted AB 361 (2021) and AB 2449 (2022) that replaced now-repealed Executive Order 

N-29-20; and  

WHEREAS, AB 2449 (2022) was signed on September 13, 2022 and is in effect 

through January 1, 2024, and among other things provides in Government Code 54953(e) 

that (i) a legislative body may use teleconferencing if it holds a meeting during a 

proclaimed state of emergency and state or local officials have imposed or recommended 

measures to promote social distancing, and (ii) a legislative body using the 

teleconferencing procedures of AB 2449 must make renewed findings by majority vote 

every thirty (30) days that it has considered the circumstances of the state of emergency, 

and that either (a) the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the 

members to meet safety in person, or (b) state or local officials continue to impose or 

recommend measures to promote social distancing; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to make findings and determinations 

consistent with AB 2449 for District Meetings to utilize the special procedures for 

teleconferencing provided therein due to imminent risks to the health and safety of 

attendees; and 

WHEREAS, in 2022, highly contagious Delta and Omicron COVID-19 variants 

are in circulation, causing increases in COVID-19 cases throughout the State and Marin 

County; and  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 81583541-F183-44F3-8DBF-DAA5EFCE5AE2



Resolution MHD 2022-06 

Page 2 of 2 

 

100B Drakes Landing Road, Suite 250                                                                                                                                   415-464-2090  

Greenbrae, CA 94904                                                                                                                                                              Fax 464-2094 

WHEREAS, the CDC continues to recommend source control and physical 

distancing for everyone in a healthcare setting; and  

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors hereby finds that the continued 

presence of COVID-19 and the increase of cases due to new variants would present 

imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, including the legislative bodies and 

staff, should District Meetings be held in person.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Marin 

Healthcare District, that (i) the above recitals are true and correct, and incorporated into 

this Resolution, and (ii) the Board of Directors makes the following findings: (a) The Board 

of Directors has considered the circumstances of the State of Emergency, (b) the State of 

Emergency, as declared by the Governor, directly impacts the ability of District Meeting 

attendees to meet safely in person, and (c) the CDC continues to recommend source control 

and physical distancing for everyone in a healthcare setting and as a result of the presence 

of COVID-19 and the increase of cases due to the new variants, meeting in person would 

present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, the legislative bodies and staff; 

and  

RESOLVED, FURTHER, that District Meetings may continue to meet remotely in 

compliance with AB 2449 (2022), in order to better ensure the health and safety of the 

public; and 

RESOLVED, FURTHER, that the District Board of Directors will revisit the need 

to conduct District Meetings remotely within thirty (30) days of the adoption of this 

resolution. 

REVIEWED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a Regular Board Meeting held on 

the 8th of November, 2022, by the following vote, to wit: 

 
AYES: Unanimous: Su, Alfrey, Sparkman, Bedard, Rienks 

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:   

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Brian Su, MD 

Chair of the Board 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Ann Sparkman, RN/BSN, JD 

Secretary of the Board 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 81583541-F183-44F3-8DBF-DAA5EFCE5AE2



 

 

 

 

 

 

Tab 2 
 

  



 

 
Page 1 of 4 

MHD Board Minutes, Regular Meeting  March 14, 2023 

MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Tuesday, March 14, 2023 @ 5:30 pm 

Inverness Conference Room, and via Zoom 
 

MINUTES 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
Chair Su called the Regular Meeting to order at 5:30 pm. 
 
Board members present:  Chair Brian Su, MD; Vice Chair Edward Alfrey, MD; Secretary Ann 

Sparkman, RN/BSN, JD; Jennifer Rienks, PhD; Samantha Ramirez, BSW 
Staff present: David Klein, MD, CEO; Eric Brettner, CFO; Colin Leary, General Counsel; Louis 

Weiner, EA 
 

2. General Public Comment 
 About 30 members of the public attended virtually and offered comments: Lynn Warner, RN, 
Katie Grossman, RN, April Gorham, RN.  They commented on nurse contract negotiations, salary, 
staffing, scheduling, recruiting and retention, and nursing support staff.  Ms. Warner stated that nurses 
have voted to strike. 
 

3. Approve Agenda 
 Dr. Alfrey moved to approve the agenda as presented. Ms. Sparkman seconded. Vote: all ayes. 
 

4. Move to reconfirm findings under Assembly Bill 2449 and extend Resolution MHD 2022-06 to 
continue virtual meetings of the Marin Healthcare District 
 Dr. Alfrey moved to reconfirm as presented. Ms. Rienks seconded. Vote: all ayes. 
 

5. Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 14, 2023 
 Dr. Alfrey moved to approve the minutes as presented. Ms. Sparkman seconded. Vote: all ayes. 
 

6. Disclosure of Action Taken at Board Special Closed Session, February 17, 2023 
 Dr. Klein reported on the Board’s Annual Retreat closed session on February 17.  No action was 
taken at that meeting, at which several topics were discussed: 

• Update on MarinHealth Medical Center’s 2021-2026 strategic plan. 
• New MarinHealth branding launch. 
• Refreshing the brand of Marin Healthcare District. To be discussed at this meeting tonight. 
• 2022 Community Health Needs Assessment. 
• Update on MarinHealth’s Community Benefit activities. 
• Community Health Outreach Programs. 
• Update on inpatient and outpatient Behavioral Health program. 
• The Board was given a tour of the hospital. 

 
 As action plans on the above items are refined, they will be brought forward to the Board in 
Regular Open Session. 
 



 

 
Page 2 of 4 

MHD Board Minutes, Regular Meeting  March 14, 2023 

7. Marin Healthcare District Rebranding 
 Ms. Jill Kinney, VP of Marketing and Communications, presented (Tab #3) the proposed process 
of redesigning the MHD logo and website.  The process proceeds from discovery questionnaire of 
stakeholders to research, mood board, logo concepts, logo refinement, and final logo library and 
guidelines.  Estimated cost is $12,000-$15,000. 
 It is proposed to use the design firm that MarinHealth is using for the current MarinHealth 
rebranding.  To explore options, Dr. Alfrey suggested that the job be put out for 3 additional Requests 
For Proposals (RFPs).  The Board members generally agreed.  For community inclusion, Ms. Rienks 
suggested that RFPs be extended to local colleges, high schools and middle schools.  The Board 
members generally agreed.  The proposals would be reviewed by the Board’s Lease and Building 
Committee in special study sessions and then brought before the full Board.  This process will be 
reviewed and discussed at the next meeting of that Committee. 
 

8. Committee Reports 
A. Finance & Audit Committee 

 Dr. Alfrey reported that the committee met on February 28. They went over financials for 
December (year-end) and January, and discussed the investment portfolio diversification to 
include up to 20% equities rather than continuing with 100% bonds.  FY 2022 ended with 
operating loss of about $214K and loss of investment of about $580K due to the highly volatile 
market.  January 2023 operating income was about $125K favorable to budget and investment 
earnings were about $112K favorable to budget, again due to the continuing volatility in the 
market. 
 

B. Lease & Building Committee 
 Ms. Rienks reported that the Committee met on March 8 and will meet again on March 22 to 
organize the upcoming seminar on adolescent eating disorders.  Dr. Sarah Lowenthal and Dr. 
Zachary Schwab are proposed panelists for the hybrid event on May 23 at a location in San Rafael. 
 Ms. Rienks asked the Board for their suggestions of topics for future seminars, and offered a 
list of several suggestions, stressing strongly for “perinatal mood and anxiety disorders.”  Dr. Su 
suggested not calling these events “seminars” and Ms. Ramirez agreed, stressing that such events 
should be structured to be interactive and more inviting than seminars or lectures. 
 Dr. Su stressed the importance of publicity and doing all that’s necessary to have the public 
respond and attend.  Ms. Rienks suggested co-sponsoring with community groups.  Dr. Klein noted 
that Ms. Kinney had presented details of a media campaign at the Committee meeting, and Ms. 
Kinney added that she had gotten an enthusiastic response from a local mom’s group about this 
next event. 
 Discussion continued about MHD presenting community health events.  Dr. Alfrey strongly 
urged moving forward with planning, noting that he has had much experience doing community 
health fairs and that he would help with this project.  Mr. Rienks noted that this was indeed 
discussed by the Committee at the last meeting, and that it may be effective to partner with an 
event and to be included in existing community events in San Rafael and Marin City, and that 
Ms. Kinney will research community calendars.  Dr. Alfrey disagreed, in that Marin Healthcare 
District should take the lead with singular focused events for the communities rather than trailing 
on existing events.  Ms. Ramirez noted that there are always people around the Al Boro 
Community Center in the Canal Area, and that a visible event there would attract people easily 
and naturally, providing a service to the community.  This will be discussed further at the next 
meeting of the Committee. 
 
 



 

 
Page 3 of 4 

MHD Board Minutes, Regular Meeting  March 14, 2023 

9. Reports 
A. District CEO’s Report 

 Dr. Klein reported that McCarthy Construction, at their expense, will be working to repair 
sub-drainage problems underneath the Oak Pavilion. The work will begin in April and will create 
some disruption. 
 Lease for Petaluma medical hub has been signed in pursuit of outpatient growth in the north 
bay, including Napa and Santa Rosa. 
 New practices in the network include dermatology in Novato and Terra Linda. Orthopedic 
surgical specialties will be added. 
 Cardiac surgery program will launch with 3 new minimally invasive cardiac surgeons from 
UCSF.  Nephrology group is joining the Medical Network. 
 The network is targeting recruitment of 25 to 30 physicians this year, at least 6 of which will 
be primary care. 
 Planning is underway for a cosmetic refresh of the Cedar Pavilion cardiac services areas. 
 Budget is being finalized for the nuclear medicine project, with some philanthropic support. 
 Pharmacy compounding room is being redesigned and rebuilt.  
 Plans are finalizing for replacement of MRI outpatient at 1260 South Eliseo. 
 Project is underway to enhance and improve signage and wayfinding. 
 

B. Hospital CEO’s Report 
 Dr. Klein reported that he presented the quarterly virtual Town Hall for all staff earlier today, 
at which he read a letter from a grateful patient.  The patient expressed in detail that each of the 
many caregivers they touched was “friendly, efficient, and professional.”  Dr. Klein read that 
letter to the Board and expressed his thanks for all staff throughout the organization. 
 January finances were favorable, exceeding budget, owing largely to high volumes.  
Investment income was favorable, and EBIDA was positive.  Expenses exceeded budget because 
of high volumes and premium labor/travelers filling staffing vacancies. 
 FEMA fundings for both the District and the hospital are still not received. 
 A consultant may be hired to perform a master facility plan to evaluate what structural and 
physical space needs will be in 5/10/15 years.  Seismic requirements, demographic planning, 
inpatient vs outpatient, stemming outmigration, etc., will be included in the planning. 
 Negotiations with CNA continue in good faith with a goal of averting a work stoppage. 
 The SCORE safety survey of staff is now underway. 
 The employee engagement survey was completed in December 2022, showing improvements 
over the previous year in most all categories.  Opportunity exists to better inform employees 
about the organization’s finances. 
 Inpatient diabetes recertification survey recently passed successfully with no findings. 
Primary stroke recertification survey recently passed successfully. Other surveys in 2022 included 
Joint Commission, CDPH, CAP lab survey, and trauma certification with no findings. 
 Other recent distinctions include:  CMS Overall Star Rating, 4 out of 5; Vizient Top 10 
Medical Center for Patient Safety, nationally; Blue Distinction Center for Medical Excellence for 
Maternity Care; zero deficiencies in CDPH’s inaugural hospital acquired infection survey; High 
Performer, California Maternal Quality Collaborative Honor Roll; Maternity High Performance 
Award from BETA Health; and others. 
 In Emergency, our “left without being seen” rate is at an all-time low, while Emergency daily 
censuses are at record highs, owing to throughput initiatives and the excellent work of the ED 
staff. 
 Dr. Klein will soon be meeting with the Marin IJ Editorial Board to update on the hospital. 
 A new Vice President of Operations will soon be hired and on board. 



 

 
Page 4 of 4 

MHD Board Minutes, Regular Meeting  March 14, 2023 

 DEI initiative is well underway, a 12-18 month project. 
 
 Dr. Alfrey added comments in support of nurses in response their earlier comments. 
 Ms. Rienks added comments in support of Dr. Klein’s earlier comments on helping staff to 
understand the financial demands and realities of the hospital organization. 
 
 Dr. Su allowed additional comments from the nurses present. 
 

C. Chair’s and Board Members’ Reports 
 Ms. Ramirez reported that she is a member of Marin Women’s Commission and is 
participating in a major event, “Marin Teen Girl Conference” on March 26. 
 There were no other reports submitted. 
 

10. Agenda Suggestions for Future Meetings 
 Ms. Sparkman suggested an update on surprise billing.  Dr. Klein agreed to bring that to the next 
Board meeting. 
 Ms. Rienks suggested a presentation on “food insecurity.”  Dr. Klein reported that an expert has 
agreed to present at the next Board meeting. 
 Dr. Alfrey reiterated a request on a presentation on the hospital’s discharge process and follow-
up, especially for Spanish-speaking patients.  Dr. Klein agreed that a presentation can be made at the 
next Board meeting. 
 
 Dr. Su allowed additional comments from the nurses present. 
 

11. Adjournment 
 Chair Su adjourned the meeting at 7:09 pm. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Tab 3 
 

  



2023 Taxable Borrowing

April 2023



 Reasons to do borrowing now
– Time issuance with audited FS after ending 2022 with positive operating results. Avoid performing 

extra work to use unaudited interim financials from Q1 2023.
– Reduce risk of additional interest rate increases/volatility (saw 25 basis point increase in three 

weeks)
– Provide liquidity needed for the following time sensitive projects in 2023/2024
– Lower interest rate than our line-of-credit (7.5% vs approx. 6.2%)
– Balance workload for Marin Finance/Legal team vs effort/costs of multiple smaller borrowings 

Proposed $100M Borrowing – Why now?

2



 Proposed borrowing of $100M taxable (not to exceed $105M depending on market)
 Purpose/Uses: 

– Provide additional strength/liquidity on the balance sheet
– Provide liquidity for strategic investments that would need to have sufficient returns 

to offset/exceed borrowing costs (returns > 6%)
– Allow operating cash to be used for rebuilding balance sheet
– Not to be used to fund ongoing operating costs

 Proposed structure – 22 year loan with balloon payments in 2045. This will allow the 
borrowing to take place under current MarinHealth/District lease.

 Impact on debt ratings – Fitch and S&P - neutral to slightly positive. Already envisioned 
in most recent rating agency reviews. 

Proposed $100M Taxable Borrowing Key Considerations

3



 Pros
– Provide needed liquidity and strengthen balance sheet
– Provides cash to make strategic investments and allow Marin to continue to grow
– Improved operations and reduced costs enable MarinHealth to borrow at this time
– Previewed borrowing with rating agencies

 Cons
– Increased debt service will require operations to maintain current performance 

Proposed $100M Taxable Borrowing Pros & Cons

4



 High level time  line:
– Issue 2022 audited FS April 
– Early April meet with Rating Agencies
– Late April published 2022 audited FS and complete diligence
– Issue in mid-May

 Complete borrowing sooner to strengthen balance sheet

Time Line

5



Recommendations and Approvals

6

 District Management recommends approval of the proposed 
borrowing

 Transaction approved unanimously by MarinHealth Medical Center 
Board on 4/4 and MarinHealth Medical Center Finance Committee on 
2/23

 Approval by MarinHealth Medical Network Board the week of 4/10
 District approval, as General Member of MarinHealth Medical Center, 

is required under Section 10.1(d) of the hospital’s bylaws.  



38105.01008\41135100.2 
 

1 
Marin Healthcare District 

Approving Resolution – Marin General Hospital 2023 Bonds 
 

RESOLUTION NO. MHD 2023-01 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF REVENUE BONDS OF 
MARINHEALTH MEDICAL CENTER 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Marin Healthcare District (the “District”) owns a hospital in Greenbrae, 

Marin County, California (the “Hospital”) that it leases to, and is operated by, Marin General 
Hospital, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation doing business as MarinHealth Medical 
Center (“MHMC”), pursuant to that certain Hospital Lease, dated as of December 2, 2015 (the 
“Lease”), by and between the District and MHMC; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District is the sole corporate member of MHMC; and 
 
WHEREAS, MHMC has previously issued revenue bonds which are secured under and 

pursuant to that certain Master Trust Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2018, as supplemented and 
amended to date (the “Master Indenture”), by and among MHMC, Prima Medical Foundation, a 
California nonprofit public benefit corporation doing business as MarinHealth Medical Network, 
of which MHMC is the sole corporate member (“Network,” and together with MHMC, the 
“Obligated Group”), and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association (as successor in interest 
to U.S. Bank National Association) (the “Master Trustee”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the Master Indenture provides for the pledge and grant to the Master Trustee 

of a security interest in the Gross Revenues and Gross Revenue Fund (as such terms are defined 
in the Master Indenture) of the Obligated Group; and 

 
WHEREAS, MHMC now desires to issue the Marin General Hospital Taxable Bonds 

Series 2023 (the “2023 Bonds”) in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed One Hundred Five 
Million Dollars ($105,000,000) pursuant to that certain Bond Indenture (the “Bond Indenture”), 
by and between MHMC and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. (the “Bond 
Trustee”). The payment obligations of MHMC under the Bond Indenture are secured by Master 
Indenture Obligation No. 4, dated the date of issuance of the 2023 Bonds (“Obligation No. 4”), 
issued by the Obligated Group under and pursuant to the Master Indenture, as supplemented by 
that certain Supplemental Master Indenture for Master Indenture Obligation No. 4 (the 
“Supplemental Indenture”), by and between MHMC and the Master Trustee; and 

 
WHEREAS, the transaction described above shall be referred to herein as the “Financing;” 

and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Lease and the Bylaws of MHMC, the written consent of the 

District is required for MHMC to enter into and consummate the Financing and issue the 2023 
Bonds; and 

 



38105.01008\41135100.2 

2 
Marin Healthcare District 

Approving Resolution – Marin General Hospital 2023 Bonds 

WHEREAS, MHMC now seeks and desires the consent and approval of the District for 
the Financing; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is consistent with the purposes of, and in the best interests of, the District 

for MHMC to enter into the Supplemental Indenture, Bond Indenture, and other related Financing 
agreements and documents in order to obtain the proceeds of the 2023 Bonds for the purposes 
described therein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District (the “Board”) wishes at this time to 

authorize all proceedings relating to the Financing as described herein and the execution and 
delivery of all agreements and documents relating thereto. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Marin 

Healthcare District, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and the Board so finds and 

determines. 
 
Section 2.  Approval of Financing.  In connection with the Financing, MHMC will 

finalize each of the Supplemental Indenture, Obligation No. 4, Bond Indenture, Bond Purchase 
Contract, by and between MHMC and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC as Underwriter, and the 
Preliminary Offering Memorandum for the 2023 Bonds (collectively, the “Bond Documents”).   

 
The Board hereby consents to the issuance of the 2023 Bonds, the delivery of the Bond 

Documents, and approves the Financing described herein.  This Resolution shall constitute written 
consent to and evidence the approval of the Financing by the Board for purposes of the Lease and 
MHMC’s Bylaws, including the requirements under Section 10.1 of MHMC’s Bylaws. 

 
Section 3.  Authorized Officers.  The Board hereby appoints the District’s Chief 

Executive Officer, its Chief Financial Officer, or either of their designees (each, an “Authorized 
Officer”) as authorized officers of the District authorized and directed to execute and deliver such 
certificates and other documents which any of them deem necessary or advisable in order to 
consummate the Financing or to constitute further evidence of this Board’s approval of the 
Financing.  

 
Section 4.  Official Actions. Each Authorized Officer, the Secretary to the Board, and any 

and all other officers of the District are hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on 
behalf of the District, to do any and all things and take any and all actions, including undertaking 
the execution and delivery of any and all assignments, certificates, requisitions, agreements, 
notices, consents, instruments of conveyance, warrants and other documents which Special 
Counsel may deem necessary or advisable, in order to consummate any of the transactions 
contemplated by the documents approved pursuant to this Resolution.   

 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect from and after the date of its 

passage and adoption. 



38105.01008\41135100.2 
 

3 
Marin Healthcare District 

Approving Resolution – Marin General Hospital 2023 Bonds 
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Marin Healthcare District at 

its meeting on April 11, 2023, by the following vote:  
 
AYES:   _______  
 
NOES:   _______ 
 
ABSENT:  _______ 
 
ABSTENTIONS: _______ 
 
 
 
 

   
Brian Su, MD 
Chair 
Board of Directors 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Ann Sparkman RN/BSN, JD 
Secretary 
Board of Directors 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Tab 4 
 

  



Achieving Nutrition 
Security in Marin County 

Presented by:
Andy Naja-Riese, MSPH
Chief Executive Officer, 
Agricultural Institute of Marin

April 10, 2023



@rdnutritionca

Our Vision

We envision a responsible food and farming system that 
is environmentally beneficial, economically viable, and 
socially just.

Our Mission

AIM’s mission is to educate, inspire, and connect 
communities, responsible farmers, and producers as part 
of a healthy, earth-friendly, equitable local and regional 
food system. 



Key Points

1. Nutrition security must be tied to 
equitable local food systems.

2. Resilient food systems require 
education, access, policy, and
community engagement.



Nutrition Security

Nutrition security means all 
Americans have consistent 
access to the safe, healthy, 
affordable foods essential to 
optimal health and well-being.



MARIN COUNTY 
RANKED 

HEALTHIEST 
COUNTY IN 

CALIFORNIA 13 
OF LAST 14 

YEARS 

C O U N TY  HE A L TH R A N K IN G S
U  O F  W ISC O N SIN  P O P U L A T IO N  HE A L TH IN ST ITU TE  &  R O B E R T  

W O O D  J O HN SO N  F O U N D A TI0 N

HOWEVER,

• At risk of Food Insecurity: 
• 16% in Marin County overall 
• 71%-53% in Canal 
• 48% in Marin City

• 17-year gap in life expectancy between 
communities in Marin w/ leading cause of 
preventable, premature cardiovascular 
disease in communities of color – direct link 
to opportunities for healthy eating, active 
living

• Almost 20,000 seniors experience food insecurity in 
Marin, particularly in Novato, San Rafael and West 
Marin. 



CalFresh 
Participation, 
Marin County

• 14,298 participants, Jan. 
2023

• Over $4.2M in benefits 
issued

• 935 child-only households

• Apply online at
https://www.getcalfresh.org 



CalFresh 
Program 
Reach 
Index

Statewide

Marin



Causes of 
Food and 
Nutrition 
Insecurity

Poverty, unemployment, or low income

Lack of affordable housing

Chronic health conditions or lack of access to healthcare

Systemic racism and racial discrimination

Disasters and Emergencies

Climate Change



True Cost of 
Food

In 2019, Americans spent $1.1 trillion 
on food. 

The true cost of the U.S. food system 
is at least three times larger -- 3.2 
trillion per year due to diet-related 
disease, water and air pollution, 
reduced biodiversity, or greenhouse 
gas emissions, which cause climate 
change.

Source: https://www.rockefellerfoundation.org/report/true-cost-of-food-measuring-
what-matters-to-transform-the-u-s-food-system/



AIM’s Certified 
Farmers Markets

• 400+ producers across our markets in Hayward, Newark, 
Oakland, Point Reyes, San Rafael, and San Francisco.

• In 2021, distributed over $572,154 in EBT & Pandemic-
EBT and over $388,000  Market Match incentives.



Rollin’ Root 
Mobile Farmers 
Market 

• Offers fruits, vegetables, and dairy products for older 
adults and nutrition insecure communities. 

• Served 6,472 participants in 2021 across 11 stops

• 11 Community ambassadors  

• Sold over $115,603 in produce to support farmers 



Center for Food & 
Agriculture 

A world-class, climate-friendly, authentic farmers market 
and educational space dedicated to a healthier food 
culture. The Center has evolved from an inspired idea to a 
Marin County ballot measure that passed with 84% of the 
votes in 2014. From 2019-2021, we developed the vision in 
close collaboration with shoppers, producers, and 
partners, with a planned opening in 2025.



HEAL VISION: 
INCREASING FOOD, 
HEALTH, ECONOMIC, 
AND SOCIAL SECURITY 

1. Increase equitable food access in 
marginalized communities

2. Support community empowerment 
(control over decision-making processes, 
self-determination, community 
leadership,

3. Leadership from low-income Black, 
Indigenous, and People of Color (BIPOC) 
communities

https://marinheal.org/



Marin Food Policy Council

https://ucanr.edu/sites/MarinFoodPolicyCouncil/



• Marin County Cooperation Team 
(MCCT) is embarking on a year-long 
community engagement process, focusing 
first on convening community 
stakeholders to agree to 3 equitable food 
system priorities and then developing a 
community engagement plan that will 
involve at least 300 community members
in Marin City evaluating those priorities. 

• www.marincountycooperationteam.org

http://www.marincountycooperationteam.org/


Youth for 
Justice 
(Canal)



• ExtraFood rescues excess fresh food 
from businesses and schools in the North 
Bay and immediately delivers it to 
organizations that serve our community's 
most vulnerable children, seniors, and 
families. ExtraFood serves 10,000 people 
every week and has rescued over 6.5 
million pounds of food.

• ExtraFood.org

http://extrafood.org/


• The San Francisco-Marin Food Bank operates 
food access programs in San Francisco and 
Marin Counties, providing fresh free groceries 
to over 5,200 Marin households each 
week. We partner with over 40 Marin 
community-based organizations to run food 
pantries, as well as serving households 
directly through our Pop-Up Pantries 
program. The Food Bank also provides 
CalFresh Outreach services and advocates for 
policy change and budget investments at all 
levels of government to improve food 
security.

• https://www.sfmfoodbank.org/

https://www.sfmfoodbank.org/


• Ceres Community Project supports clients who 
are living with acute and chronic health 
conditions including cancer, diabetes and heart 
disease, with 100% organic medically tailored and 
home delivered meals, groceries and RDN 
support. The organization provides more than 
200,000 meals annually to 1,500+ clients and 
their families; 83% of clients are living on less 
than $25,000 annually. 

• Website: ceresproject.org 



Key Takeaways

Nutrition security must consider 
healthy food access and local food 
systems changes. 



Keep in Touch

Andy Naja-Riese, CEO
andy@agriculturalinstitute.org

www.agriculturalinstitute.org
Instagram: @aim.ceo.andy
Twitter: @AndyNajaRiese

mailto:andy@agriculturalinstitute.org


 

 

 

 

 

 

Tab 5 
 

  



discharge process for patients
with limited english proficiency (LEP)

after APeX implementation



Hospital discharge process for non-English speakers

 Concepts
– Benefit: effective communication at hospital discharge is necessary for 

an optimal transition, best patient experience and to avoid adverse 
events after discharge

– Regulatory: Title VI of the US Civil Rights Act/Department of Health and 
Human Services (DHHS), CMS and The Joint Commission

– Approximately 350 different languages are spoken in the US

 MHMC is committed to provide quality hospital discharge 
instructions for patients with limited English proficiency (LEP)
– 24/7 Video Interpreters (through Language Line or Voyce carts) are 

available at the bedside 
• Text on screen is currently available on Language Line, and will be added to Voyce in Q2

– 24/7 phone interpreters (through Language Line) is available by calling 
the hospital Operator 

– Forms are available in other languages
– Post-discharge phone calls



Interpreter services: Language Line/Voyce



Online
references 
for staff



Principles and preferences

 Considerations
– Level of English language proficiency

– Individual’s preference

– Cultural background

– Educational level

– Interpretation modality / technology

– Verbal v. written instructions

 General guiding principles
– Avoid the use of patients' family members or friends as interpreters

– Methods vary – individualize approach in selecting one

– Document use of a professional interpreter in the patient's medical 
record



Maternity Care

 Spanish-speaking patients in Maternity care approx. 46%
 Language Line/Voyce Service is used for mothers and partners, as well as 

during follow up lactation consultation visits
 Several nurses are proficient in Spanish
 Discharge teaching tool/checklist in Spanish

– Nurse gives the mother the teaching checklist and goes over what is needed 
using the Language Line and then it referencing specific elements in the book. 
We also have several educational videos in Spanish that can be watched

 MHMC publications in Spanish:
– Patient Guide 
– Maternity Care discharge booklet 
– NICU admission
– Feeding instructions and plan
– Hearing test results and follow up
– Pediatric discharge instructions

 Additional informational printouts are available from EHR



Discharge teaching tool/checklist in Spanish



MHMC publications in Spanish: 
Patient guide, Discharge booklet, NICU admit booklet and handouts



Emergency Department

 Use of Language Line/Voyce for communication and care 

 Various forms are provided to patients in Spanish:
– AVS (After Visit Summary/Discharge instructions, Consents (procedural, blood 

transfusion, etc.), AMA forms. FormFast has additional documents in various 
language. 

 Post discharge phone calls made by the Discharge Support RNs using 
interpreter if patient’s preferred language is listed as other than English.

 ED consistently provides patients with accurate discharge instructions in 
their preferred language, either via Language Line/Voyce or in-person 
interpreter. There is a multitude of tools and options that are patient specific. 

 AVS (After Visit Summary) is printed in English and in the patient’s preferred 
language so the discharging provider can review the instructions with the 
Voyce interpreter and the patient can follow along with the instructions in 
their preferred language. 



ED AVS (After Visit Summary) Example #1



ED AVS (After Visit Summary) Example #2



ED AVS (After Visit Summary) Example #3



ED AVS (After Visit Summary) Example #4



ED AVS (After Visit Summary) Example Cont. 



 We have numerous Voyce iPads always available to 
use when providing care to assist with translation

 At discharge, nurses have the option to print the AVS 
from APeX in several languages and font sizes. Nursing 
reviews discharge instructions with the patient/family in 
their preferred language using the Voyce iPad. 

 Nurses use Teach Back to confirm understanding: “Now 
you teach me what I just taught you.”

 Discharge instructions are signed by patient or patient 
representative and the RN after education is completed

 The Discharge Prescription Report does not print fully 
in other languages, but outside pharmacies usually 
have the translation on the labels

Medical-Surgical Care – 12 additional languages



MS – example of printed instructions



 Phone calls are made to patients by the Post-Discharge Support RNs 

 They have access to the same interpreters if patient’s preferred 
language is listed as something other than English.   

 While these RNs can’t call each and every discharged patient, the 
MedSurg RNs can and do call the Discharge RNs if there is a specific 
patient they want to make sure is called the next day. 

 The Discharge RNs are seeing exactly the AVS the patient has at 
home so they can reference specific pages for the patient if needed.

Post-Discharge RNs



 Patient education videos that RNs can assign to patients and they 
can view them in their MyChart App.

 Nursing will be able to run a report to see which videos have been 
watched.

 Several topics and conditions are also available in Spanish.

Coming in May… Mytonomy!


	03_2023 Taxable Borrowing Board 4-5-23 - Powepoint - Open session.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Proposed $100M Borrowing – Why now?
	Proposed $100M Taxable Borrowing Key Considerations
	Proposed $100M Taxable Borrowing Pros & Cons
	Time Line
	Recommendations and Approvals
	Discussion

	03_MHD Resolution 2023-01 MHMC Revenue Bonds.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. MHD 2023-01
	RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
	NOES:   _______
	ABSENT:  _______
	ABSTENTIONS: _______
	ATTEST:

	04_Nutrition Security 04-11-2023.pdf
	Default Section
	Slide 1: Achieving Nutrition Security in Marin County   
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Key Points
	Slide 4: Nutrition Security
	Slide 5:   Marin County Ranked Healthiest County in California 13 of last 14 years     County Health Rankings U of Wisconsin Population Health Institute & Robert Wood Johnson Foundati0n
	Slide 6: CalFresh Participation, Marin County
	Slide 7: CalFresh Program Reach Index
	Slide 8: Causes of Food and Nutrition Insecurity
	Slide 9: True Cost of Food
	Slide 10: AIM’s Certified Farmers Markets  
	Slide 11: Rollin’ Root Mobile Farmers Market 
	Slide 12: Center for Food & Agriculture 
	Slide 13: HEAL Vision: Increasing food, Health, Economic, and social Security 
	Slide 14: Marin Food Policy Council
	Slide 15
	Slide 16: Youth for Justice (Canal)
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20: Key Takeaways
	Slide 21: Keep in Touch


	05_2023-4-11 non-english speakers - discharge process - final.pdf
	discharge process for patients�with limited english proficiency (LEP)� after APeX implementation
	Hospital discharge process for non-English speakers
	Interpreter services: Language Line/Voyce
	Online�references �for staff
	Principles and preferences
	Maternity Care
	Discharge teaching tool/checklist in Spanish�
	MHMC publications in Spanish: �Patient guide, Discharge booklet, NICU admit booklet and handouts
	Emergency Department
	ED AVS (After Visit Summary) Example #1
	ED AVS (After Visit Summary) Example #2
	ED AVS (After Visit Summary) Example #3
	ED AVS (After Visit Summary) Example #4
	ED AVS (After Visit Summary) Example Cont. 
	Medical-Surgical Care – 12 additional languages
	MS – example of printed instructions
	Post-Discharge RNs
	Coming in May… Mytonomy!




